

# County of Ventura

# Municipal Advisory Council (MAC) Policies

Adopted by the Board of Supervisors on June 18, 2024

### **Table of Contents**

Introduction3	
Purpose of Municipal Advisory Councils	
Applicability of this Municipal Advisory Council Policy Document	3
Board Member MAC Assignment4	
Scope and Designated Powers & Duties4	
MAC Member Appointments & Elections5	
Appointed MAC Member Termination6	
Management of Unscheduled Vacancies7	
MAC Alternate Positions7	
Powers and Duties of MAC Officers8	
MAC Meetings9	
MAC Subcommittees 13	
Procedure for Rules of Debate	
MAC Training Requirements	
Administrative Support of MACs 17	
Advisement on County Service Areas and Other Taxation Districts	17
MAC Annual Reports, Including Work Plans	
MAC Boundaries	
Termination of a MAC 19	

# Introduction

California Government Code section 31010 allows the Board of Supervisors to establish a Municipal Advisory Council ("MAC") for any unincorporated area in the County to advise the Board on matters that relate to the designated MAC area concerning services which are or may be provided to the area by the County or other local governmental agencies, including but not limited to advice on matters of public health, safety, welfare, public works and planning. When established, a MAC is an advisory body of local citizens with the purpose of representing the community to the Board of Supervisors. As an advisory body, a MAC has no fiscal or administrative authority. Nor does a MAC have any final decision-making authority. Because a MAC lacks authority to implement the MAC's position directly, it must seek to accomplish its goals through County government. As advisory bodies to facilitate input from the community to the Board of Supervisors, MACs hold public meetings, receive community input, survey community opinion, and speak for the community to the Board of Supervisors on matters of the community to the Board of Supervisor.

This Policy seeks to establish a framework to manage the County's Municipal Advisory Councils more effectively across all Supervisorial Districts. While some variances may appropriately reflect the inherent differences in the communities served and the priorities of the District Supervisor, a general framework for the operating rules and procedures of MACs will ensure that MACs are effectively serving their advisory purpose to the Board of Supervisors, and more specifically to their District Supervisor, and are successfully representing the concerns and recommendations of their respective communities.

# Purpose of Municipal Advisory Councils

Ventura County's MACs advise their representative District Supervisor on matters concerning services which are or may be provided to the MAC area by the County or other local governmental agencies, including but not limited to advice on matters of public health, safety, welfare, public works, and planning. MACs do not establish government policy or objective. Rather, MACs provide valuable input and advisement from their community that may help their representative District Supervisor make policy decisions, provide necessary resources, or inform the Board of Supervisors on potential opportunities, risks, or issues that affect their community. MACs should strive to govern and work together in an effective, efficient, ethical, and courteous manner in the highest tradition of public service and in the best interest of the County of Ventura and its residents.

# Applicability of this Municipal Advisory Council Policy Document

Government Code section 31010, subdivision (f) recognizes the ability for the Board of Supervisors to adopt rules, regulations and procedures as may be necessary in connection with the establishment and operation of MACs. Consistent with that authority, this policy document was created with the best intentions to assist the Board of Supervisors and their respective Municipal Advisory Councils. This policy document can be changed from time to time by majority vote of the Board of Supervisors. Finally, this policy document shall only be applicable to a municipal advisory council if the resolution for the municipal advisory council explicitly recognizes adoption of this policy document.

These policies are procedural only. Except as otherwise provided by law, the failure to strictly observe the application of these policies shall not affect the jurisdiction of the MAC or invalidate any action taken at a MAC meeting that is otherwise held in conformity with law.

### **Board Member MAC Assignment**

From time to time, Municipal Advisory Council designated unincorporated areas may in whole or in part shift from being entirely in one supervisorial district's boundaries or within the area of multiple districts. This generally occurs due to redistricting. In order to streamline MAC operations, one specific District Supervisor's district office team will be considered responsible for administration of each MAC. Should something of interest to the MAC reside in another Supervisorial District's area, the responsible District Supervisor will communicate with the other District Supervisor to invite that District Supervisor to participate and/or communicate back the concerns of the MAC.

Municipal Advisory Council	Assigned County Supervisor District
Casa Conejo	2
El Rio/Del Norte	3
Oak Park	2
Ojai Valley	1
Santa Rosa Valley	2
Saticoy	1
Somis	2

As of the adoption of this policy in June 2024, below is a current list of MACs in the unincorporated areas of the County:

### Scope and Designated Powers & Duties

The scope, under California Government Code section 31010, indicates that Municipal Advisory Councils shall "advise the Board on such matters which relate to [the territorial area of the MAC] concerning services which are or may be provided to the area by the County or other local governmental agencies, including but not limited to advice on matters of public health, safety, welfare, public works, and planning." More specifically, items to be considered by the MAC are ultimately determined by the District Supervisor in whose district the MAC is located. Some MAC members may also be called upon by their respective District Supervisor to provide input on various topics that the Supervisor has requested. Examples include committees that work on the MAC's Annual Plan, Legislative Committees and Area Plans. MACs have the authority to review and approve oversized vehicle parking permits in areas where an oversized vehicle ordinance requires a MAC to do so.

### MAC Member Appointments & Elections

Depending upon how the MAC was established via resolution by the Board of Supervisors, MAC members are either appointed by the Board of Supervisors or elected by voters within a MAC's designated boundaries. Whether or not a MAC is an elected body, or an appointed body, is determined by Board of Supervisors' resolution. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable resolution, MAC Members, whether elected or appointed, serve four-year terms. The resolution establishing the MAC shall specify the number of members on the MAC. Additionally, MACs shall be composed and serve as provided herein.

#### Appointed MAC Member Policies

- Should a member of the public wish to be considered for an appointed role on a MAC, the individual must reside in, and be registered to vote in, the MAC's designated area. A completed County of Ventura Application for Appointment to Boards, Commissions, and Committees must also be received.
- 2. The District Supervisor for the MAC will receive all applications and conduct interviews as necessary. Upon selection of a candidate, the District Supervisor must submit a board letter to the Board of Supervisors recommending appointment to the MAC.
- 3. For a scheduled vacancy, the appointment term shall be four years unless removed earlier by the Board of Supervisors. For an unscheduled vacancy, the appointment term shall be for the remainder of the existing unexpired term unless removed earlier by the Board of Supervisors.
- 4. MAC members are required to review, be familiar with, and comply with the open meeting provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code section 54950 et seq.).
- 5. MAC members are required to review the County's Conflict of Interest code, complete training and abide by the requirements of the Conflict-of-Interest code.
- 6. MAC members are required to abide by the rules set forth in the Ventura County Municipal Advisory Council Policies.
- 7. MAC members shall serve without compensation of any kind, and the Board of Supervisors shall not provide funds for the payment of Council meeting stipends or reimbursement of Council members' expenses.
- 8. MAC members shall be cognizant of any perceived conflict of interest pertaining to items scheduled for MAC review and input, and shall recuse themselves from deliberations and from voting on such matters.
- 9. There shall be no automatic re-appointment or holdover of MAC members upon expiration of a member's term.
- 10. The District Supervisor may choose whether to re-nominate an incumbent member or nominate a new member. Any re-nomination or nomination must be approved by the Board of Supervisors.

#### Elected MAC Member Policies (Currently Oak Park and Santa Rosa Valley MACs Only)

Qualification for and election to the MAC and all proceedings incidental to and connected with the election shall be performed in accordance with the California Uniform District Election Law (California Elections Code section 10500 et seq.) and California Elections Code except as specifically provided herein.

- 1. The MAC shall be composed of five members. All members shall be elected at large by registered voters residing within the MAC area.
- 2. All candidates for MAC Member positions must be registered voters residing within the MAC's area.
- 3. Elections shall be held on scheduled election days determined by the County Clerk-Recorder & Registrar of Voters presiding over elections according to the following:
  - a. The term of office for elected MAC members shall be four years.
  - b. Elections shall be held on the first Tuesday after the first Monday in November of even numbered years for as long as the MAC exists.
  - c. The candidates who receive the greatest number of votes shall be elected. In case of a tie, the contest shall be decided by lot.
  - d. Elected MAC members shall take office at noon on the first Friday in December next following the election pursuant to Elections Code section 10554.
- 4. MAC members are required to review, be familiar with, and comply with the open meeting provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code section 54950 et seq.).
- 5. MAC members are required to review the County's Conflict of Interest code, complete training and abide by the requirements of the Conflict-of-Interest code.
- 6. MAC members are required to abide by the rules set forth in the Ventura County Municipal Advisory Council Policies.
- 7. MAC members shall serve without compensation of any kind, and the Board of Supervisors shall not provide funds for the payment of MAC meeting stipends or reimbursement of MAC members' expenses.

# **Appointed MAC Member Termination**

Each appointed member of a MAC serves at the pleasure of the Board of Supervisors and may be removed, at will, by a majority vote of the Board. Removal by the Board is rare. However, policies should be in place in the event that a MAC member acts inappropriately toward other MAC members, staff, or the public; acts outside the authority of the MAC; or has persistent problems with attendance.

#### Termination Policies

- 1. Appointed MAC members may be removed from their appointments at will upon recommendation by the District Supervisor and a majority vote of the Board of Supervisors.
- 2. MAC members should express their concerns about any inappropriate behavior by a member to their District Supervisor.

- a. If an issue arises, a District Supervisor may meet with or send a letter to the MAC member advising the member of the concern and indicating that a failure to correct the inappropriate behavior may lead to removal from the MAC.
- 3. The MAC member should receive written notice of a recommendation for removal, the date and time of the meeting at which the Board of Supervisors will consider the removal, and of the opportunity for public comment to the Board before action on the removal.
- 4. If a MAC member or alternate has been absent from two consecutive meetings, the secretary or District Supervisor's administrative support staff should advise the member or alternate that absence from three consecutive regular meetings of the MAC may result in a recommendation of removal to the Board of Supervisors. In District 1 the administrative support staff is referred to as the "Executive Officer" for the MAC.
- 5. Where it appears that there will be sufficient members to hold a meeting but, at the actual time of the meeting a quorum cannot be reached and the meeting is canceled, those members or alternates who are absent will have an absence counted against them.

### Management of Unscheduled Vacancies

A MAC position shall become vacant on the occurrence of the events specified in Government Code section 1770. This section may be amended from time to time.

In the event there is an unscheduled vacancy on the MAC, the Board of Supervisors shall fill such a vacancy by appointment for the remainder of the unscheduled vacancy term. The following is a partial list of events triggering Government Code 1770 that apply:

- 1. Death of an incumbent.
- 2. An adjudication pursuant to a quo warranto proceeding declaring that the incumbent is physically or mentally incapacitated due to disease, illness, or accident, and there is reasonable cause that the incumbent will not be able to perform the duties of his or her office for the remainder of their term.
- 3. His or her resignation.
- 4. His or her removal from office.
- 5. His or her ceasing to be a resident of the designated MAC area.
- 6. His or her ceasing to discharge the duties of his or her office for a period of three consecutive months, except when prevented by sickness, or absent from the state with permission required by law.
- 7. His or her conviction of a felony or of any offense involving a violation of his or her official duties.
- 8. The decision of a competent tribunal declaring void his or her election or appointment.

### **MAC Alternate Positions**

For appointed MACs, appointed alternate positions may be established. Alternates can serve a useful purpose by assisting with the achievement of a quorum. However, a policy of automatic appointment of the alternate in the event of a vacancy may discourage other interested individuals from applying for appointment. Moreover, appointments should not be made automatically, in respect of District Supervisor responsibility for member nominations. Accordingly, the following policy has been set forth:

- 1. Alternate positions do not automatically assume a member position when a vacancy arises. Alternates, however, may be nominated to fill a member vacancy to the Board of Supervisors by the District Supervisor.
- 2. The establishment of an alternate position (or positions) on a MAC is at the discretion of the District Supervisor.

### Powers and Duties of MAC Officers

Each calendar year, at the first meeting of the year of the MAC, officers of the MAC are appointed by motion and formal vote for each officer position.

#### Chair (selected by MAC)

The Chair shall serve as presiding officer of the MAC, shall rule on questions of procedure, shall sign official documents approved by the MAC, shall preserve order and decorum and shall decide all questions of order. Decisions of the Chair may be overruled by a majority vote of the MAC. The Chair, in their capacity, can only act on behalf of items formally voted on and agreed to by the MAC and approved by the District Supervisor.

#### Vice Chair (selected by MAC)

The Vice Chair shall have and exercise all the powers of the Chair at the meeting over which he or she is called on to preside. In the event of nonappearance by the Chair at any regular or special meeting, the Vice Chair shall call the MAC meeting to order and shall serve as presiding officer.

#### **Chair Pro Tempore**

If neither the Chair nor the Vice Chair is present at a meeting, the MAC members present shall, by a motion and vote select one of their members to act as the Chair Pro Tempore. The Chair Pro Tempore shall have and exercise all the powers and duties of the Chair for that particular meeting only.

#### Secretary

A recording secretary is responsible for documenting the motions, votes, comments, and other official actions of the MAC. The secretary shall take meeting minutes during the MAC meeting and e-mail a draft copy of the minutes to the assigned staff member from the District Supervisor's office at the end of the MAC meeting. The District Supervisor's office will include the draft minutes in the next meeting's agenda packet for formal MAC approval of the minutes.

District 1 MACs (Ojai Valley and Saticoy MAC) do not have a Secretary Officer position. Rather, the Executive Officer (Supervisorial Office Staff) is tasked with taking meeting minutes during the MAC meeting and provides a draft at the subsequent MAC meeting for review and approval.

### **MAC** Meetings

The frequency and length of meetings increase the cost and requirements of administrative support for the MACs. The annual meeting calendar will be developed and posted annually by the Supervisor's office. Any scheduled meeting may be canceled upon order of the Chair or a majority of the members of the MAC.

#### Regular Meetings

- 1. MACs shall establish a standard meeting schedule for the year and meet no less than quarterly at an established time and place.
- 2. MAC meetings should be held at a time and place convenient and accessible to MAC members, the community, and administrative support staff within the adopted designated area of the MAC.
- 3. MAC meetings should not exceed three (3) hours in length.
- 4. MAC meetings shall be fully compliant with the Brown Act.
- 5. The MACs shall agendize and respond to items that are referred to them in a timely manner (at the next regularly scheduled meeting or sooner, if needed) such that their review does not delay the County Board of Supervisors' consideration of the matter.
- 6. The agenda should reflect, and the MAC Chair should remind the public at the start of each meeting that the MAC is an advisory body to their representative District Supervisor.
- 7. Should a MAC member be unable to attend a meeting, all reasonable effort shall be made to notify the Chair and the designated District Supervisor's office in writing as soon as possible.
- 8. For each MAC, a quorum sufficient to transact business shall be a majority of the MAC membership, both filled and vacant positions. A valid action must reflect the consent of at least a majority of the MAC membership, both filled and unfilled positions.

#### Special Meetings

1. Special Meetings to discuss a specific topic(s) may be called. No other business shall be considered at the special meeting. Rules for posting are outlined in the Brown Act.

#### Order of Business

The order of business at each regular meeting, except for such times as may be set apart for consideration of special items, shall be as follows:

#### 1. Meeting Called to Order

The Chair shall open the meeting by calling the meeting to order. The officer shall state the name of the MAC and further state that the MAC is an advisory body to the Board of Supervisors on matters that relate to the MAC's designated area.

#### 2. Roll Call

The Chair, at the commencement of a meeting of the MAC, shall call the roll and the Secretary (or Executive Officer for the Ojai Valley and Saticoy MACs) shall record by name all members present or absent. If the Chair has been notified prior to the meeting that a member will be absent, the Secretary (or Executive Officer for the Ojai Valley and Saticoy MACs) shall record in the minutes that the absence of said member is by prearrangement (excused). Should a quorum of three members of the MAC not be met, the meeting must be adjourned to the next scheduled meeting of the MAC.

#### 3. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America

The Chair shall designate a member of the MAC to lead the meeting in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance.

#### 4. Minutes

The minutes of previous meetings of the MAC shall be considered and any corrections, alterations, or additions may be made by the MAC.

#### 5. Agenda Review

The Chair will announce any agenda amendments and/or revisions, and requests for items to be continued or removed from the Consent agenda. The MAC will consider and approve, by majority vote, such revisions to MAC agenda items and any item added to, or removed/continued from, the MAC agenda. Any addition of items to the agenda after it is posted must comply with the provisions of the Brown Act.

#### 6. Consent Agenda Items

Consent agenda items are routine in nature and do not require individual consideration. All consent items are approved by a single vote as recommended without discussion unless an item is pulled and considered during the Regular agenda for separate action at the request of a MAC member, staff member, or a member of the public.

#### 7. Public Comment

The rules relating to public comment are as follows:

#### Addressing the MAC

- Prior to the meeting, or during the meeting prior to the time the agenda item to be addressed begins, a person wishing to address the MAC should fill out a speaker card or equivalent and submit it to the Chair. While completion of a speaker card or signing in on the sign in sheet is helpful for the minutes of the meeting, a speaker is not precluded from speaking if the speaker does not complete a speaker card or does not give the speaker's name.
- 2. When called upon, the person should come to the podium, state his or her name and city of residence for the record, and, if speaking for an organization or other group, identify the organization or group represented. The Secretary or Executive Officer shall enter in the minutes the names of the individual(s) speaking.
- 3. All remarks should be addressed to the MAC as a whole, not to individual members thereof. Each person speaking from the floor shall obtain permission from the Chair.

- 4. Questions, if any, should be addressed to the Chair of the MAC who will determine whether, or in what manner, an answer will be provided.
- 5. Public Comment is that period of time set aside at MAC meetings for members of the public to address the MAC on items not listed on the agenda or on matters that are listed under the Consent Agenda. If the matter is listed on the Consent Agenda, the item will be moved to the Regular Agenda for consideration following the approval of the remainder of the Consent Agenda, at which time the speaker will be heard, or the speaker will be allowed his or her time before the MAC's consideration of the Consent agenda.
- 6. Public Comment shall be limited to no more than 30 minutes total for all speakers, with each speaker given no more than three minutes. If there are more than six speakers, the Chair may reduce the time each speaker is allowed to (3) three minutes or any other period less than five minutes. At the discretion of the Chair, the time allotment for speakers may be adjusted above or below five minutes relative to the number of speakers present. Persons wishing to speak under Public Comment should submit a speaker card prior to the commencement of the item.

7. Presentations under Public Comment are limited to items within the subject matter jurisdiction of MAC and are limited to no more than five minutes.

- 8. The Public Comment portion of the MAC meetings shall be deemed to constitute the opportunity for members of the public to address the MAC in compliance with Government Code section 54954.3.
- 9. Members of the public making public comments to the MAC in connection with one or more agenda or non-agenda items at a single meeting are limited to a cumulative total of five minutes for all of their oral presentations at such meeting unless otherwise provided.
- 10. If a matter has been presented orally before the MAC, whether the MAC has taken action, or determined to take no action, the same or substantially same matter may not be presented orally by the same person at the same meeting any further. Nothing in the foregoing precludes submission of comments to the MAC in writing for such action or non-action as the MAC, in its discretion, may deem appropriate.
- 11. Any of the foregoing rules may be waived by the presiding officer or by a majority vote of the MAC members present when it is deemed that there is good cause to do so based upon the particular facts and circumstances involved.

#### Comments in Writing Encouraged

12. Members of the public may submit, and are encouraged to submit, comments in writing to the MAC relating to any items in the MAC's scope and designated area, whether on the MAC agenda or otherwise. When written materials are provided to the MAC during a meeting, 10 copies are required to be submitted. Such written comments will be distributed to members of the MAC and considered and acted upon, or not acted upon, as the MAC in its judgment may deem appropriate. Written comments made on agenda items will become part of the record of the agenda proceeding.

# 8. Comments by Representative of the District Supervisor or the District Supervisor Responsible for the MAC

This is the time for the District Supervisor or the Supervisor's designee to provide feedback or updates pertinent to the MAC's scope and area or feedback and updates as it pertains to the County.

#### 9. Comments by MAC Members

Comments by MAC members on matters they deem appropriate within the MAC's scope and area. Consistent with the Brown Act, a MAC member may ask a question for clarification, make a brief announcement, or make a brief report on his or her own activities. A MAC member may also provide a reference to staff or other resources for information or request staff to report back to the body at a subsequent meeting concerning any matter. The MAC may also direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda.

#### 10. Regular Agenda Items

Items not included in the Consent agenda or items that are not time certain are taken up for consideration as part of the Regular agenda. They will be heard at the MAC's discretion, either before or after scheduled appointments and hearings.

#### 11. Adjournment

The last item on the agenda shall always be an adjournment item indicating the date, time, and location for the next scheduled meeting. (Government Code section 54955)

#### Official Actions in a Meeting

#### 1. Motions

- a. Action of the MAC shall be taken by motion. Any action of the MAC may be proposed by the motion of any MAC member. Such a motion, if seconded by a member, shall be on the floor and must be considered. If a motion is not seconded, the motion fails for lack of a second, shall be so declared by the Chair, and shall not be further considered.
- b. A motion may be withdrawn by its maker at any time before adoption or rejection, with the consent of the second. Absent the consent of the second, the motion shall remain on the floor. The second to a motion may be withdrawn by the second at any time before adoption or rejection of the motion. Upon withdrawal of the second, the motion will be lost for lack of a second and so declared by the Chair unless seconded by another member.
- c. When a question or "original motion" is under debate, no motion shall be received unless:
  - i. To adjourn
  - ii. To lay on the table
  - iii. To consider the previous question
  - iv. To continue to a certain date
  - v. To amend
  - vi. To remove These motions shall have preference in the above order.
- d. A motion on the floor may be amended by motion at any time before adoption or rejection. If the motion to amend fails, the original motion will be voted upon. If the motion to amend passes, the amendment is adopted and, thereafter, the original motion, as amended, will be voted upon. After a motion has been seconded, any

the motion. When no member wishes to discuss the motion further, the Chair shall call for the vote on the motion. At any time after a motion has been seconded, any member who has the floor may call for a question. The Chair may call for the vote if it appears that further discussion will be repetitious or that a majority of the Members present concur in the call.

- *e.* A motion to consider the previous question shall preclude all amendment from debate to the main question and shall be put in the form "shall the main question be put to a vote."
- *f.* A member called to order shall relinquish the floor unless permitted to explain, and the MAC, if appealed to, shall decide on the case, but without debate. If there is no appeal, the decision of the Chair shall be final.
- *g.* A Motion to Reconsider Made at the Same Meeting Upon motion by a MAC member who voted with the prevailing side of the matter previously considered, and seconded by any MAC member, the MAC may, by majority vote of the entire MAC (at least three votes in favor), reconsider any matter dealt with previously by the MAC at the same meeting. The motion may be made either during the same session or at any recessed or adjourned session of that same meeting.
- h. A Motion to Reconsider Made at a Subsequent Meeting Upon request of and a motion by a MAC member who voted with the prevailing side of the matter previously considered, and seconded by any MAC member, the MAC may, by majority vote of the entire MAC (at least three votes in favor), reconsider any matter dealt with previously by the Board at a previous meeting of the MAC. All such requests for reconsideration that appear on the agenda shall contain both the recommendation to reconsider and a recommendation on the matter previously considered and are subject to standard agenda requirements. All decisions made after consideration at a public hearing shall be reconsidered only at a public hearing, which is noticed in the same manner as the original hearing.

#### 2. Votes

a. Voting shall be by roll call. Each roll call vote shall be made in an order determined by the Chair but shall first include the maker of the motion and the member who seconded the motion, followed by the balance of the members present, with the Chair called last, unless the Chair made, or seconded, the motion.

### **MAC Subcommittees**

MACs may establish subcommittees to address subject areas considered by the MAC. It is important that subcommittees adhere to the Brown Act, and County's policies and ordinances. Unless these policies and procedures are followed, the MAC, the public and the Board of Supervisors may not be well served by the committees.

 MACs may establish a limited, single-purpose committee (or subcommittee) when needed. The committee (or subcommittee) shall be composed of less than a quorum of the MAC and chaired by one of its members. Members of the public who are not MAC members may serve on a committee or subcommittee to allow broad-based input from the community.

- 2. A specific charge or outline of responsibilities shall be established for the committee (or subcommittee) by the MAC.
- 3. The committee (or subcommittee) shall operate in accordance with MAC operating procedures, the Brown Act, the County's Conflict of Interest Code, and the County's Municipal Advisory Council policies.
- 4. Meeting agendas for committees (or subcommittees) shall be posted and records of action should be maintained and posted as well.
- 5. A report on the status of the committee (or subcommittee) is to be provided in the regular agenda of the MAC complete with copies of any agendas, minutes or other materials created since the last MAC meeting.

### Procedure for Rules of Debate

During a MAC meeting, it is possible that differences in opinion or views may occur. Accordingly, regardless of debate, MAC members shall follow the following procedures to ensure a clear record and ensure that all MAC members that wish to speak are heard in a respectful manner.

#### Recognition to Speak

Every MAC member desiring to speak shall first address the Chair and be recognized by such. The member shall solely discuss the question under debate, avoiding personalities and indecorous language.

#### Questions to Staff

Every MAC member desiring to question County staff, after recognition by the Chair, shall address the questions to the Supervisor's representative who may either to answer or designate a member of staff for that purpose.

#### Interruption

A MAC member, once recognized, shall not be interrupted by other MAC members when speaking unless called to order by the Chair or a point of order or personal privilege is raised by another MAC member. If a MAC member, while speaking, is called to order, the member shall cease speaking until the question of order is determined. Members of the Supervisor's staff, after recognition by the Chair, shall hold the floor until the completion of their remarks or until recognition is withdrawn by the Chair.

#### Points of Order

The Chair shall determine all "points of order" subject to the right of any MAC member to appeal the Chair's decision to the full MAC. If an appeal is taken, the question shall be, "Shall the decision of the Chair be sustained?" A majority vote of those MAC members present shall conclusively determine such question of order.

#### Point of Personal Privilege

The right of a MAC member to address the MAC on a question of personal privilege shall be limited to cases in which the member's integrity, character or motives are questioned. A MAC member raising a point of personal privilege may interrupt another MAC member who has the floor only if the Chair recognizes the personal privilege.

#### Privilege of Closing the Debate.

The MAC member moving the item shall have the privilege of making the closing remarks during debate prior to the vote by the MAC.

#### Limitation of Debate.

To encourage the full participation of all members of the MAC, no MAC member(s) shall be permitted to monopolize the discussion of the question. If a MAC member has already spoken and other MAC Members wish to speak, the latter MAC Member(s) should be recognized in preference to the MAC Member who has already spoken. However, if no other MAC Members seek recognition, the Chair may recognize the MAC Member who has already spoken.

### **Rules and Guidelines of Decorum**

In order to maintain a public meeting environment conducive to receiving public testimony from all sides of any issue, and to ensure that all persons have an equal opportunity to see, hear and participate in the public meeting, the following rules of decorum shall be used during MAC meetings:

To minimize distractions during public meetings, all personal communication devices must be turned off or put in a non-audible mode during meetings.

#### Chair and MAC Members

While the MAC is in session, the members shall preserve order and decorum, and a member shall neither, by conversation or otherwise, delay or interrupt the proceedings nor disturb any member while speaking nor refuse to obey the orders of the Chair.

#### Persons Addressing the MAC

Speakers are prohibited from using profane or vulgar language, making true threats of physical violence, and from engaging in such other conduct that disrupts, disturbs, or impedes the orderly conduct of the meeting. Any person who becomes disruptive while addressing the MAC, shall be called to order by the Chair and, if such conduct continues, may, at the discretion of the Chair, be ordered removed from the premises during that meeting. Nothing herein shall preclude a member of the public from commenting on, questioning, or criticizing the policies, procedures, programs, or services of the County, the acts or omissions of the MAC, or the positions, statements, votes, actions, or omissions of members of the MAC.

#### Members of the Audience

Audience members are prohibited from engaging in audible displays such as shouting, yelling, whistling, foot stomping, clapping, booing, hissing, and cheering in a manner that disturbs, disrupts, or otherwise impedes the orderly conduct of the meeting. Any person who becomes disruptive while in the audience shall be called to order by the Chair and, if such conduct continues, may, at the discretion of the Chair, be ordered removed from the premises during that meeting.

Signs, placards, or posters shall not be brought into the meeting room if the presence of such an item disturbs, disrupts, or otherwise impedes the orderly conduct of the meeting. The Chair may direct that all signs, placards, and posters be placed in the back of the meeting room where they will still be visible by members of the MAC but will not block or otherwise obstruct the view or participation of other members of the public attending the meeting.

#### Maintaining Order and Decorum

- 1. The Chair shall be responsible for maintaining the order and decorum at public meetings and uniformly enforcing the provisions of this policy.
- 2. In the event any person violates a provision of this policy in a manner that disturbs, disrupts, or otherwise impedes the orderly conduct of the meeting, the Chair may order that person to cease the offending conduct.
- 3. If any person continues to violate the provision in a manner that disturbs, disrupts, or otherwise impedes the orderly conduct of the meeting following an order from the Chair to cease the offending conduct, the Chair may order that person to leave the meeting.
- 4. If any person refuses to leave the meeting following an order from the Chair to do so, the Chair may order any law enforcement officer on duty to remove that person from the meeting.
- 5. Any person removed from the meeting shall be excluded from further attendance at the meeting from which the person has been removed unless permission to attend has be granted by the presiding officer or by majority vote of the MAC.

### MAC Training Requirements

MAC members should be trained in meeting operating procedures, the Brown Act, and County policies. Training provides MAC members with resources and knowledge to operate efficiently and effectively. When offered, MAC members are expected to attend any relevant training by County Counsel or other County staff related to the scope, operations, and applicable law for MAC meetings. MAC members should receive an orientation on MAC member duties and responsibilities by Supervisorial District and/or County staff before their first meeting.

 If applicable, within three months of appointment, each MAC member shall complete the prescribed training on compliance with conflict of interest, Form 700, and shall certify that he or she has completed such training. Training certificates and compliance shall be maintained by the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors.

# Administrative Support of MACs

To ensure effectiveness, all MACs need some level of administrative support services provided by the responsible supervisorial district staff.

#### Supervisorial District Staff Shall:

- 1. Identify and manage the securing and setup of a location for MAC meetings.
- 2. Annually develop a draft calendar for the consideration and approval by the MAC.
- 3. Develop an optional draft agenda that is shared with the public no fewer than three days prior to the finalization of the agenda to allow time for community preparation and participation.
- 4. Develop agenda packages complete with the draft minutes created by the MAC-appointed Secretary or Executive Officer and any other materials planned to be presented.
- 5. In adherence to the Brown Act, posting the agenda at the location of the meeting no later than 72 hours prior to the meeting.
- 6. Post the agenda on the corresponding MAC website.
- 7. E-mail the agenda package to the e-mail list for the MAC.
- 8. Maintain the MAC website.
- 9. Prepare responses to inquiries made during public comment.
- 10. Prepare responses to requests from MAC members.

### Advisement on County Service Areas and Other Taxation Districts

The designated area of MACs may coincide with funding districts such as County Service Areas. When requested by the District Supervisor, a MAC may review and provide advisory recommendations concerning the financing and operation of such areas. Where a separate board or entity exists to manage a taxation district, the MAC shall give deference to that entity for all official advisement matters.

### MAC External Communications and Representations

In accordance with Government Code section 31010, MACs, where optionally established, advise the Board of Supervisors on such matters that relate to their designated area. In Ventura County, MACs advise their representative District Supervisor on items of import. Accordingly, it is understood that the Board of Supervisors is the final decision-making authority with respect to issues concerning the community and that the MAC shall serve solely in an advisory capacity.

#### Policies Regarding External Communication and Representations

1. Except when expressly authorized by the majority of the Board of Supervisors, the MAC and its individual members acting on behalf of the MAC, may not represent the community to any

federal, state, other county, city, special district or school district, agency or commission, or any other organization on any matter concerning the community.

- 2. Should a MAC member wish to opine on any matter that has not been expressly authorized by the MAC or the Ventura County Municipal Advisory Council Policies, they must indicate that while they are a member of the MAC, their opinion does not reflect the official opinion of the MAC or the County of Ventura.
- 3. The MAC may not, as a body, take positions on candidates for any public office.
- 4. Any letterhead or printed material from the MAC should identify the MAC as an advisory body to their representative Supervisor, and the contact information for the District Supervisor should be included.

# MAC Annual Reports, Including Work Plans

When requested by the District Supervisor, the MAC shall create an annual report regarding MAC activities, accomplishments, membership attendance, records of required training, and a proposed Work Plan or objectives for the following year.

- 1. Before the last MAC meeting of the calendar year, the MAC shall review and provide feedback on a draft of their annual report and work plan for the following year created by the Chair and Vice Chair.
- 2. At the last MAC meeting of the calendar year, the MAC shall finalize their annual report and work plan for submission to the representative District Supervisor.
- 3. Failure to submit an annual report and work plan may result in consideration of MAC dissolution.

# **MAC Boundaries**

Municipal Advisory Council boundaries are required to be within the unincorporated area of Ventura County and within the commonly accepted known area that could have impact on the designated area of the MAC. The designated area will be defined by an official map that accompanies the Board of Supervisors resolution forming the MAC. The resolution of the MAC shall explicitly define the precincts and/or specific parcel numbers for the designated area of the MAC.

When an unincorporated community of interest is adjacent to industrial areas or facilities (e.g., refineries, power plants, gas fields) that are also in the unincorporated area, these industrial areas or facilities should be included in the MAC boundaries if there are known or anticipated matters of public health, safety, welfare, public works, and/or planning. When an unincorporated community of interest is adjacent to government-owned lands (e.g., airports, special district lands, transitional military bases, etc.) that are also in the unincorporated area, these government owned lands should be included in the MAC boundaries only if there are known or anticipated matters of public health, safety, welfare, public works, and/or planning.

From time to time, MAC boundaries may be updated by review and advisement approval by the MAC and consideration and approval by the Board of Supervisors. The Board of Supervisors is the sole authority for the ultimate determination of MAC boundaries. Any action to update the MAC

boundaries must comply with the resolution and mapping requirements of Government Code section 31010.

Should a MAC's boundaries incorporate more than one Supervisorial District, please refer to the Board Member MAC Assignment section of the Ventura County Municipal Advisory Council Policies.

### Termination of a MAC

The Board of Supervisors may, at its sole discretion, take action to terminate and dissolve a Municipal Advisory Council at a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors. Such termination will be effective after giving 30 days written notice to the MAC after the Board's action at a regular Board meeting.